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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
The Board of Trustees 
Singing River Health System 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of 
Singing River Health System (the "Health System"), a component unit of Jackson County, 
Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Health System's basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the business-type activities of the Health System, as of  
September 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 18 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  Management has omitted the fiscal 
year 2012 financial information used for comparison purposes within the management's 
discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by 
the omitted information. 
 
Other Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
taken as a whole.  The Schedule of Surety Bonds for Officers and Employees on page 53 is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  
 
The Schedule of Surety Bonds for Officers and Employees has not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
. 
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Restatement 

As part of our audit of the 2013 financial statements, we also audited the adjustment described in 
Note 2 that was applied to restate the 2012 net position.  In our opinion, the adjustment is 
appropriate and has been properly applied.  We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any 
procedures to the 2012 financial statements of the Health System other than with respect to the 
adjustment and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 
2012 financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated  
July 29, 2014 on our consideration of the Health System's internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
grants and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion of the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Health System's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
Ridgeland, Mississippi 
July 29, 2014 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 

This discussion and analysis of Singing River Health System’s financial performance provides 
an overall review of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.  The 
intent of this discussion and analysis is to provide further information regarding the Health 
System’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the audited financial 
statements and the notes to the basic financial statements to further enhance their understanding 
of the Health System’s financial performance. The annual report referenced in this management 
discussion and analysis also includes the accounts of Singing River Ambulatory Services, Inc. 
(Ambulatory Services), which accounts for approximately 3% of Health System total operating 
revenue.  
 
Industry Highlights 
 
The healthcare industry has endured a number of significant challenges over the past several 
years, and it is critical that a reader of these financial statements have a working knowledge of 
the environment in which the Health System operates, both locally and nationally. This includes 
an understanding, to the extent possible, of the significant ramifications of the Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (PPACA) and the State of Mississippi’s position within the 
context of this Federal law. Federal and State health policy has changed dramatically since the 
passage of the PPACA, and many of the changes are phased in over a long period of time, 
extending out as far as 2024 in some cases. Further, there are a number of provisions of both 
Federal and State policy and laws that are subject to interpretation and change. The magnitude 
and uncertainty associated with this is significant. 

The PPACA expands health insurance coverage for approximately 30 million U.S. citizens and 
legal residents. It creates exchanges where individuals and small businesses can shop for 
insurance, prohibits insurers from rescinding coverage or denying care and coverage for pre-
existing conditions, and imposes limits on the dollar value of benefits. The Act expands 
Medicaid eligibility, providing Federal funds to states to help cover the cost of the newly insured 
and short-term funds for primary care providers to match Medicare payment levels. It also 
extends the ability of children to stay on their parents’ insurance until age 26. 

To pay for the program, the law includes taxes and fees on pharmaceutical manufacturers, the 
insurance industry, medical device sales, high-cost health plans, and wages and unearned income 
of high-income individuals. Penalties will be assessed on individuals who fail to purchase 
insurance coverage and employers who fail to provide coverage. Also, the law reduces Medicare 
Advantage payments, Medicare hospital payment updates, and Medicaid and Medicare 
disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments. It establishes a value-based purchasing 
program, and requires hospitals to meet defined standards or pay penalties for excess 
readmissions and hospital-acquired conditions. 

The expected addition of newly-insured Americans as the reform plan rolls out over the next 
decade might provide a benefit for hospitals though an increased number of paying patients and a 
reduced amount of uncompensated care. However, it is important to note that a significant 
portion of these newly insured patients will be Medicaid recipients with relatively low levels of 
reimbursement. The ultimate overall effect of PPACA on health care systems is unclear.
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 

 
Nationally, many critical issues are having a significant impact on the operations of health 
systems. They include but are not limited to the following: 

 The most significant issues currently impacting health systems relate to the effect of 
changes, known and unknown, resulting from the PPACA and the State of Mississippi’s 
response to it. For example, the state’s decision to not expand Medicaid will have 
significant negative implications for hospitals and health systems in Mississippi. 

 The PPACA calls for reductions in Disproportionate Share (DSH) Payments to states and 
the Health System could be negatively impacted by up to $30 million per year in the 
future.   

 The emergence of new care payment models and new health plan designs will impact 
how health systems operate and are paid. The PPACA has increased the degree to which 
employers have shifted the burden to employees. Consumers are taking on more financial 
responsibility for their health coverage, both voluntarily and involuntarily through 
employer health plan structures. These “consumer driven health plans” and “high 
deductible health plans” will impact how health systems and providers are paid. 
Healthcare spending is significantly lower for families in high deductible plans compared 
with families in other types of plans. Families in these plans also cut back on preventive 
care such as immunizations and cancer screenings even though that care is not subject to 
a deductible. They initiate fewer episodes of care and spend less per episode. They also 
spend less on inpatient and outpatient care and prescription drugs, but not on emergency 
department care, which is both more expensive for them and generally unprofitable for 
health systems. 

 Health Insurance Exchanges under the PPACA are not being utilized in the manner that 
was expected by the designers of the program.  For those who do participate, the 
introduction of exchange-purchased plans is expected to shift more beneficiaries into 
lower-paying plans with plan reimbursement rates that are significantly lower than 
traditional employer-sponsored plans. As some Americans use these marketplaces to find 
coverage, an increasing number of healthcare services will be paid at lower 
reimbursement rates. 

 The Readmissions Reduction Program established by the PPACA cut Medicare 
reimbursement by up to two percent for hospitals with readmission rates for heart attack, 
heart failure and pneumonia exceeding that hospital’s expected readmission rate. In fiscal 
year 2015, hospitals could see their Medicare payments cut by as much as three percent 
as CMS adds chronic obstructive pulmonary disorder and total hip and knee replacement 
to the program. 

 The Federal Recovery Audit Contract (RAC) program has led to significant challenges 
for health systems and has resulted in reduced reimbursement each of the past three 
years. Hospitals and health systems are facing more audits of payment claims, which 
subject hospitals to additional administrative burden and costly payment denials, most of
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
which are subjected to long, costly and cumbersome appeal processes that the 
government has sole control of administration.  RAC contractors have audited provider 
claims for the Medicare program nationwide since 2010 and are paid a contingency fee 
for each claim they denied, but are not penalized for inaccuracy. 

 Value Based Payment systems implemented by Medicare, Medicaid, and many insurers 
put payments to providers at varying levels of risk and these types of payment systems 
are likely to continue to increase. 

 Medicare has required certain payments to be “bundled” in order to reduce payments. For 
example, when lab costs are associated with other procedures in the overall encounter, no 
separate credit is given to the lab cost, the payment is simply bundled based on the 
overall procedure or diagnosis. 

 The Budget Control Act of 2011 established an enforcement mechanism called 
"sequestration" under which across-the-board spending reductions must be implemented 
over ten years beginning in 2013. The spending reductions are to be split evenly between 
defense and non-defense spending, although certain programs (including Medicaid and 
the CHIP program) are exempt from these automatic spending reductions, and Medicare 
expenditures were reduced two percent. Each year for the next nine years that the deficit 
thresholds are reached, similar across-the-board spending reductions could be 
implemented, and Medicare payments would be similarly reduced. Some private health 
insurance plans where payments are linked or related to Medicare payment amounts may 
seek to implement similar payment solutions. 

 The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 provides for Medicare and 
Medicaid electronic health record ("EHR") incentive payments that began in calendar 
2011 for eligible hospitals and professionals that adopt and meaningfully use certified 
EHR technology. The financial impact of implementing Electronic Health Records and 
the application of penalties for not being in compliance are significant.  In addition to the 
cost of capital of these systems, the ongoing maintenance costs are substantial and in 
some cases exceed the incentives to implement them. 

 The cost of physical medical technology remains very high. With almost every 
life-saving advance in medicine comes significant additional cost in the form of 
equipment and/or pharmaceuticals. With the recent national attention placed on patient 
safety, there is considerable pressure on hospitals to make significant investments in 
physical medical technology, clinical decision support systems, electronic medical 
records, and other related applications.  Another consequence of this shift is a shortfall of 
IT talent needed to help healthcare organizations manage their operations, optimize EHRs 
and make use of the data. Healthcare organization’s IT staff will be forced to deal with 
things like preparing the organization for ICD-10, continuing work toward Meaningful 
Use requirements and implementing IT tools required for risk-based payment and 
population health management. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 

 On or after October 1, 2015, the ICD-9 code sets used to report medical diagnoses and 
inpatient procedures will be required to be replaced by ICD-10 code sets.  One of the 
most important concerns in the transition from ICD-9 to ICD-10 codes is that there is no 
simple mapping or translation from the former to the latter. There is some one-to-one 
correspondence, but often there are one-to-many, many-to-one, many-to-many, or no 
correspondence at all. This conversion will be a major endeavor and will result in some 
lag time in processing payments accurately by both payors and providers. 

 The number of indigent and uninsured patients remains a significant problem, and the 
burden of providing this care often falls on hospitals and other providers. These patients 
are important and should be provided all necessary and appropriate healthcare services; 
however, the lack of an efficient integrated plan of care, coordinated at the national, state, 
and local levels, for these patients adds both inefficiency and cost to the healthcare 
delivery system. 

 Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and commercial insurers do not increase at 
the same rate as the cost of labor, supply, and pharmaceuticals costs. Drug costs have 
continued to increase at near double-digit rates for the last several years, and a national 
shortage of certain healthcare workers coupled with increased demand is increasing wage 
rates. 

 Significant competition for the few remaining profitable areas in healthcare continues to 
grow. For-profit providers are competing with hospitals for outpatient surgery, 
laboratory, magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), rehabilitation, and other areas, which 
historically were provided by hospitals. These competitors typically do not provide the 
same level of uncompensated care required of a community hospital, nor do they 
typically provide unprofitable services such as emergency care/trauma or psychiatric 
care. 

 There are shortages of certain physician specialists both locally and nationally, and this 
shortage is expected to grow over the next several years. The issues outlined above, along 
with many others, result in more difficulties in attracting physicians to certain specialties 
and also make local recruiting a significant challenge. Most experts also anticipate that as 
the baby boomer generation continues to age, the demands on the nation’s healthcare 
providers will increase. 

 Due to a proliferation of malpractice suits across this country, malpractice insurance rates 
continue to be an issue for hospitals and physicians.  

 Maintaining a comprehensive trauma system continues to be a challenge, particularly in 
Mississippi, due principally to physician shortages in certain specialty areas such as 
neurosurgery, insufficient reimbursement for the high costs associated with maintaining a 
7-day per week, 24-hour per day emergency department and significant regulatory 
requirements. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 

 Access to capital remains a challenge for many hospitals in the country, particularly 
public hospitals. Meeting community expectations for high-quality services while 
maintaining a reasonable charge structure makes it difficult for community safety-net 
hospitals to generate surplus cash and operating results that meet the high expectations of 
capital markets. 

Local Issues 
 
In addition to the Medicaid issues above, there exists much uncertainty concerning future 
funding of Medicaid in Mississippi. In the summer of 2012, the Supreme Court affirmed nearly 
all aspects of PPACA. One exception was a provision that required states to expand eligibility 
for a state’s Medicaid program or face significant penalties. Under the Supreme Court ruling, 
states will not face penalties for not participating in Medicaid Expansion and can choose whether 
or not to participate in the program which will be financed principally by the federal government. 
In Mississippi, Medicaid expansion would provide coverage to thousands of Mississippians who 
do not currently qualify. At this time, Mississippi has decided not to participate in Medicaid 
expansion. 

The Health System continues to operate a Behavioral Health Program (the Program) as a service 
to the community. This unit consists of an adult acute psychiatric unit, a geriatric psychiatric 
unit, several Structured Outpatient Programs ("SOP"), a crisis intervention program, and 
physician office practices. The Program has expanded significantly over the past several with the 
addition of three psychiatrists and the opening of additional SOPs. The Program accounts lose 
money on a fully-costed basis.  A portion of the loss is due to a significant number of Chancery 
Court ordered commitments, most of which are uncompensated. During fiscal year 2013, the 
Program accounted for just under $3.4 million in losses with full overhead. This compares to 
losses of $1.9 million in fiscal year 2012 and $2.3 million in fiscal year 2011. Several factors 
contributed to the unfavorable change in operations during fiscal year 2013 including higher 
costs, reimbursement rates lower than inflation, and continued placement by the Chancery Court 
with no reimbursement. 

During 2009, the Mississippi Legislature enacted new technical amendments to the Medicaid 
program regarding hospitals’ roles in financing the Medicaid program.  The bill extended the 
Mississippi Division of Medicaid ("DOM") until 2012 and included hospital assessments as well 
as safeguards.  The assessments were capped for fiscal year 2010 through 2012 and represented a 
significant burden on the State hospitals. During fiscal year 2013, the Health System paid an 
assessment of $11.3 million.  The safeguards provide some level of certainty that no additional 
cuts will be made to Medicaid payments as long as the assessments are in effect and guarantees 
the Health System’s participation in the DSH program.  

On September 1, 2012, the DOM implemented a new reimbursement methodology for both in-
patient as well as out-patient services. On December 20, 2012, the DOM rescinded the 
Ambulatory Payment Classification ("APC") reimbursement methodology for payment of out-
patient services and reverted back to a cost-to-charge ratio reimbursement methodology for the 
period September 1 through December 31, 2012.  Both of the above changes reduced Medicaid 
reimbursement for the Health System.  
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
There are numerous other factors that must be considered in evaluating the financial operations 
and strategic plan of any healthcare provider. However, it is important to evaluate the 
performance of any such provider within the context of the industry. 
 
Financial Highlights   
 
During fiscal year 2013, the Health System reported a decrease in net position of $32.3 million. 
In reviewing all of the aged accounts held by the Health System, the finance department 
concluded that an adjustment was needed in the amount of money the organization could 
reasonably expect to collect on its historical balances owed from certain individuals.  Because 
these accounts originated over a period of approximately five years, the adjustment represented a 
prior period adjustment (pre-2013) of $61 million. Over this time span, the adjustment represents 
a change of approximately 3% of SRHS annual expected collections on its total delivery of 
services.  For the current fiscal year audit, the new methodology resulted in an adjustment to the 
expected amount of collections for 2013 of $27 million.   
 
Total cash, cash equivalents, and funds designated by the Board for capital improvements 
increased $15 million from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2013.   The increase in cash, cash 
equivalents, and funds designated for capital improvements was caused primarily by a 
combination of reductions in the timing of vendor disbursements while expenses were accrued 
(many were not paid until October of 2013) and increased collections realized on the backlog in 
accounts receivable caused from the implementation of a new billing system. Gross days revenue 
in accounts receivable (excluding in–house collection accounts) was 50 days at  
September 30, 2013. The decrease in net accounts receivable and days in accounts receivable is 
largely attributable to a return to normal after the implementation of the new EMR and billing 
system along with process improvement in the accounts receivable areas. 

In fiscal year 2013, the net pension liability was $35.5 million. 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This annual report consists of the financial statements and notes to the financial statements of the 
Health System. The Health System, a political subdivision of the State of Mississippi, is owned 
by Jackson County (the County) and organized as a county hospital under provisions of the 
statutes of the State of Mississippi. The Health System is exempt from federal and state income 
taxes. 

While the County is obligated to appropriate money from its general fund, and levy property 
taxes to support the operations of the Health System, the Health System has been self-supporting 
and receives no County appropriations for its operations, nor has it received any such financial 
support from the County in over twenty-six years. The legally available mills have been pledged 
as additional security for the 2009 and 2011 Revenue Bonds, but have never been levied to 
support these or any other bonds. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 

 
The Board of Trustees, appointed by the County Board of Supervisors, is charged with the 
maintenance, operation, and management of the Health System, its finances and staff. The 
Health System’s primary mission is to provide healthcare services to the citizens of its service 
area, which includes the County and the surrounding areas, through its acute, primary, and 
specialty care facilities. 

The financial statements include the accounts and transactions of Singing River Hospital, Ocean 
Springs Hospital and Ambulatory Services, which is comprised of a number of blended 
component units, including Mississippi Coast Endoscopy and Ambulatory Surgical Center, LLC, 
Ocean Springs Surgical and Endoscopy Center, LLC, and other outpatient healthcare service 
entities. The blended component units of Ambulatory Services are generally majority owned 
joint ventures with local physicians. These ventures were developed as part of the Health 
System’s strategic goal of providing important medical services to the community in a delivery 
mode that is convenient and efficient for the patients. 

The statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, 
and the statement of cash flows present the Health System’s financial position, results of its 
operations, and its cash flows. The statement of net position includes all of the Health System’s 
assets and liabilities, using the accrual basis of accounting, as well as an indication about which 
assets can be utilized for general purposes and which are restricted as a result of bond covenants 
or other purposes. The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position report all of 
the revenues and expenses during the time period indicated. The statement of cash flows reports 
the cash provided by operating activities, as well as other cash sources and uses such as 
investment income, debt repayment, and capital expenditures. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
The following table provides a summary of the Health System’s total assets, total liabilities, and 
total net position for fiscal year 2013. 
 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION (IN MILLIONS) 

      2013 

ASSETS   
  Current assets $ 104.3
  Designated funds and funds held by trustees  31.8
  Other assets  2.2
  Capital assets  203.7

 Total assets $ 342.0

LIABILITIES   

  Current liabilities $ 64.4
  Long-term debt, less current installments  96.3
  Capital lease obligations, less current installments  1.3
  Other long-term liabilities  60.3

 Total liabilities  222.3

NET POSITION 
 

  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  75.0
  Restricted – expandable for debt service   17.2
  Restricted – nonexpendable for minority interest  0.7
  Unrestricted  26.8

 Total net position  119.7

 Total liabilities and net position $ 342.0
 
The following is a summary of the Health System's cash and cash equivalents, funds designated 
by Board for capital improvements and funds held by trustees for fiscal year 2013:  
 

        2013 
        (In millions)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42.4 
Funds designated by Board  16.0 
Held by trustees for debt service and self-   

 insurance funding  18.7 

  Total $ 77.1 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 

At September 30, 2013, the Health System held cash and cash equivalents and funds designated 
by Board for capital improvements sufficient to cover approximately 60 days of nondepreciation 
expenses, including interest expense.  
 
Cash, cash equivalents and funds designated by Board for capital improvements were $58.4 
million at the end of fiscal year 2013. 
 
Acquiring additional cash reserves continues to be an important consideration for the Health 
System due to the importance placed on cash on hand by credit agencies and bond insurers. 
Options for accessing capital in the marketplace will continue to be somewhat restricted until 
additional cash reserves are acquired. This will be a particular challenge for the Health System, 
due to its long-standing efforts to maintain a charge structure that is low relative to the other 
hospital providers on the Mississippi Gulf Coast. This strategy has been in place for many years 
in recognition of its role as a community hospital that did not historically place a high strategic 
priority in the accumulation of cash reserves. The need to maintain state of the art facilities in a 
high-tech (and high-cost) industry, and pressures to increase wages to remain competitive in the 
face of national shortages in many healthcare professions, including nursing, have made it 
particularly challenging to significantly improve the Health System’s cash position. 

Capital Assets 
 
During fiscal year 2013, net capital assets increased from $200 million to $203 million.   Major 
capital additions during fiscal year 2013 included equipment, major facility renovations, and 
Phase II implementation of an Electronic Health Record system.  

The Health System contracted with Epic Systems Corporation as a clinical development partner 
and vendor for acquisition and further development of an information and decision support 
system in 2012. This includes a comprehensive electronic health record, on-line clinical orders 
and documentation, physician order entry, and expert decision support, to name just a few of the 
applications. The installation and maintenance of these products was accomplished on  
July 1, 2012 with other applications scheduled to go live through 2014.   

Debt Administration  
 
On April 2, 2009, the Health System issued $35,000,000 of Special Obligation Bonds (the Series 
2009A bonds) through the Mississippi Development Bank (the "MDB"). The purpose of the 
bonds was to provide funding for constructing, remodeling, adding to, equipping and furnishing 
an addition to and expansion of the Health System, funding a debt service reserve fund for the 
Series 2009A bonds and paying cost of issuance on the Series 2009A bonds. The bonds consist 
of $6,455,000 Serial Bonds and $28,545,000 Term Bonds and are at fixed rates ranging from 3.0 
percent to 5.625 percent. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
On October 27, 2009 the Health System refunded the Series 2008A bonds, outstanding in the 
amount of $44,000,000, with the Series 2009 B-l and 2009 B-2 bonds. The Series 2009 B-l and 
2009 B-2 bonds are fixed rate bonds secured by a bond insurance policy provided by Assured 
Guaranty and a five mill pledge of the assessed real and personal property by Jackson County.  

The Series 2009 B-l and B-2 bonds were issued by the MDB and pay interest semiannually 
(January 1 and July 1) and principal annually (July 1 with the exception of the 2023 payment 
which is March 1). The Series 2009 B-l bonds of $48,340,000 mature on March 1, 2023 and the 
Series 2009 B-2 bonds of $2,395,000 matured on July 1, 2012. 

On July 27, 2011, the Health System issued $36,610,000 of Special Obligation Bonds (the Series 
2011 bonds). The purpose of the 2011 bonds is to provide funding for an electronic medical 
record system, constructing, remodeling, adding to, equipping and furnishing an addition to and 
expansion of the Health System, funding a debt service reserve fund, paying capitalized interest 
and paying costs of issuance on the Series 2011 Bonds. The bonds are fixed rate bonds secured 
by a bond insurance policy provided by Assured Guaranty and a five mill pledge of the assessed 
real and personal property by Jackson County. The Series 2011 bonds were issued by the MDB 
and pay interest semiannually (January 1 and July 1) and principal annually (July 1). The bonds 
consist of $28,255,000 Serial Bonds maturing on July 1, 2023, $4,490,000 of Term Bonds 
maturing on July 1, 2031 and $3,865,000 of Term Bonds maturing on July 1, 2036 and are at 
fixed rates ranging from 3.0 percent to 5.375 percent. 

The loan agreements between the MDB and the Health System discussed above set certain 
financial tests including cash availability, debt service coverage and additional indebtedness.  
These covenants are consistent with other credit providers to the Health System as well as with 
those of hospital credits of comparable size and financial strength. Due to the operating loss of 
$32.3 million, certain of these covenants were not met. Management is implementing a plan to 
restore operations to a level which will meet these covenants. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 

Revenues and Expenses 
 
The table below shows revenues, expenses and the changes in net position for fiscal year 2013:  
 

REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (IN MILLIONS) 
 

  2013 

Operating revenues: 
   Net patient service revenue $ 333.0
   Other revenue 12.7
    
       Total operating revenues 345.7
 
Operating expenses: 
   Salaries and benefits 189.4
   Professional fees 17.7
   Supplies and other 72.1
   Purchased service 42.7
   Other expenses 29.2
   Depreciation and amortization 25.2

      Total operating expenses 376.3

      Operating income (30.6)
   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):  
   Investment income 0.7
   Interest expense (1.7)
   Minority interests (0.7)

      Nonoperating expenses, net (1.7)

      Decrease in net position $ (32.3)
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 

Net Patient Service Revenue 

Net Patient Revenue for the Health System was $333 million in fiscal year 2013.  
 
Effective April 1, 2001, the DOM implemented the Upper Payment Limit ("UPL") program. 
Through participation in the UPL program, the Health System has received reimbursement of 
$19.4 million during 2013. This reimbursement was used to provide services to an increasing 
number of Medicaid and indigent patients; however, there can be no assurance that the program 
will not be discontinued or materially modified in the future. 
 
In addition to UPL payments, the Health System received Disproportionate Share Hospital 
("DSH") payments of $15.2 million for fiscal year 2013.  The DOM and Myers & Stauffer, LC 
administer the DSH program. DSH is designed to provide additional compensation to providers 
who meet the threshold, which currently requires that a hospital’s inpatient Medicaid utilization 
be 75 percent of the state mean. This percentage is subject to change. This is an all or none 
program, which means that a hospital is either fully in the program or completely excluded based 
solely on the hospital’s Medicaid utilization relative to the threshold. Based on the safeguards 
provided for in the 2009 agreement, the Health System’s participation in the DSH program is 
guaranteed through 2014. The amount of the reimbursement is calculated by the DOM based on 
a survey of Mississippi hospitals designed to provide the DOM with data it can use, along with 
its own information and formulas, to estimate the DSH allocation to each qualifying hospital. 
There is no guarantee of Health System eligibility in future years. The additional reimbursement 
received through the DSH program is designed to assist the hospitals in funding costs associated 
with providing healthcare to the indigent and underinsured. 
 
During fiscal year 2013, payor class percentages stabilized somewhat; however, private 
insurance continued to decrease and government sponsored payors like Medicare continued to 
increase.  

Below is a chart comparing payor class percentages for fiscal year 2013 based on volume of 
revenue: 

        2013 

Medicare    45.6% 
Medicaid    18.6 
Managed Care    23.8 
Self-pay    12.0 

 Total  100.0% 
 
Business Activity 
 
Inpatient days of care for the Health System and admissions both increased 1% during fiscal year 
2013 where average length of stay for acute care patients remained the same.   Average length of 
stay for psychiatric care patients in fiscal year 2013 increased 49%.  During fiscal year 2013, 
outpatient observation bed days decreased 11% from fiscal year 2012. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
Observation beds are inpatient beds utilized by certain patients for approximately two days or 
less and reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid, and most insurance companies at a lower outpatient 
rate. Observation days were 4,233 and 4,761 for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 respectively. 

A summary of inpatient by service days follows: 
 

        2013 

Medical     24,469
Surgical/orthopedic  19,545
Psychiatric    6,563
Maternal child health  11,422
Intensive and intermediate care  11,831

 General acute care days  73,830

Rehab      6,139
Nursery     3,316

 Total all inpatient days  83,285

     Total admissions  18,195
 
Total outpatient volume increased at a rate of 2% during fiscal year 2013.  Additionally, 
emergency room visits increased 5% from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2013.   

The Medicare case mix for hospitals is a measure of Medicare inpatient acuity and has an effect 
on Medicare inpatient payments. Case mix levels have remained steady in fiscal years 2012 and 
2013 after a period of change in the documentation of patients’ medical records. 

 
A summary of Medicare case mix indices follows: 

        2013 

Singing River Hospital  1.50 
Ocean Springs Hospital  1.68 
 

Deductions from Revenue 
 
Contractual and other adjustments (excluding charity and bad debts) expressed as a percentage of 
gross revenues, were 73% for fiscal year 2013.    
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 

Charity Care 
 
Charity care was $94.0 million in fiscal year 2013.  Several years ago, the Health System 
implemented a new Board approved charity policy that provided for write-offs on a sliding scale 
basis. This allowed for charity write-offs of a portion of the patient’s bill based on ability to pay. 
This process allowed the Health System to be more exact in its classification of patient accounts 
for collection purposes. During fiscal year 2013, the Health System’s charity policy was 
reviewed and re-affirmed by Board approval. The increase in fiscal year 2013 is indicative of 
current economic conditions. The amount of care the Health System delivered in 2013 to patients 
with little or no insurance was the highest in its history.   

Bad Debts   
 
Bad debt expense was $86.7 million in fiscal year 2013.   Bad debt expense relates to patients 
with self-pay balances that do not qualify under the charity guidelines discussed previously and 
to those patients of which collection for services cannot be obtained.  

Operating Expenses 
 
Total operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization, increased to $376.3 million in 
fiscal year 2013. Total operating expenses per adjusted discharge increased 2.1 percent.  
 
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 
 
During fiscal year 2013, total Health System labor costs (salaries and benefits) decreased 3.4 
percent over prior year levels.  Total full time equivalents (FTEs) decreased across the Health 
System by 163 FTEs during fiscal year 2013, (from 2,723 FTEs in fiscal year 2012 to 2,560 in 
fiscal year 2013).  
 
The net decrease of FTEs during fiscal year 2013 is a combination of many factors.  Several 
positions were eliminated and tighter controls were maintained on the vacancy factor; however, 
it was necessary to add new programs and staffing to prepare for the implementation of the new 
clinical information system. 

Nationally, there remains a shortage of nurses and certain other healthcare professionals such as 
X-Ray technicians, CRNAs, pharmacists and medical technologists. In response to these 
shortages, the Health System has implemented salary adjustments and various other scheduling 
and staffing initiatives as appropriate. As a result of these efforts, the Health System has been 
able to maintain a nurse vacancy rate of approximately under 3 percent, which is much lower 
than the national average. 
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
 
 
During fiscal year 2013, the total costs of employee benefits for the Health System’s employees, 
including cost related to the Health System’s pension plan, were $38.6 million compared to 
$41.8 million in fiscal year 2012. The decrease is due to actuarial calculated costs for the Health 
System’s pension plan and retiree medical costs as well as an increase in covered beneficiaries. 
The Health System’s pension cost as well as a freeze in the plan to new employees over the last 
three fiscal years has been impacted by the change in the market conditions of the plan’s assets. 
The plan’s assets have been performing in line with market returns which have resulted in annual 
pension cost of $8.8 million and $8.5 million in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Other Cost Factors 
 
Supplies and pharmaceutical costs decreased approximately 3.5% during fiscal year 2013.   The 
Health System participates in national and state group purchasing programs which assure that 
pricing for products is among the best available.  During fiscal year 2013, drug costs benefitted 
from participation in the federal 340B drug discount program and the M & D Cares drug 
replacement program, both of which serve indigent patients.   

Labor costs (salaries and benefits) and supplies (including medical supplies, blood products, and 
pharmaceuticals) combine to account for over 74% of total operating costs annually. 
 
Economic Factors and Fiscal Year 2014 Budget 
 
The Board of Trustees approved the fiscal year 2014 operating budget at a meeting in 2013, prior 
to the audit adjustment discussed in the Financial Highlights section above. As noted, for the 
current fiscal year audit, the corrected accounts receivable resulted in an adjustment to the 
expected amount of collections for 2013 of $27 million.  While the budget for 2014 reflected an 
increase in net position, the budget assumptions for 2014 revenue were incorrect.  Accordingly, 
it is anticipated that the system will reflect a decrease in net position for 2014.  The issues that 
caused the accounts receivable adjustment have been corrected, and the 2015 fiscal year budget 
process should be more accurate.  The System will be updating its strategic business plan as part 
of the operating budget process, and management believes that with careful management of 
operational cash flow, it can adequately meet the healthcare needs of the community. 

The Health System has adopted a rolling three-year capital plan designed to complement and 
support the strategic operating plan. The capital plan is based on the identified capital needs of 
the Health System and supported by a detailed facility study and equipment needs analysis. The 
capital plan is supplemented by a Strategic Facilities Master Plan, which was developed in 
conjunction with healthcare architects/facility planners in order to address future needs with 
regard to Health System facilities. Generally, the Facilities Master Plan addresses age of plant 
issues at Singing River Hospital and the recommendation to move the remaining patient care 
floors, principally surgical beds and women's and children's units, out of the South Tower, and 
capacity issues at Ocean Springs Hospital. These issues have been addressed in the System's 
three-year capital plan. 
 
 



2013

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,445,680                   
Trusteed bond funds - required for current liabilities 2,777,465                     
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $50,109,000 46,572,802                   
Other receivables 3,916,906                     
Due from third-party payors 1,782,106                     
Inventories 5,411,951                     
Prepaid expenses 1,374,581                     

Total current assets 104,281,491                 

Funds designated by Board for capital improvements 15,989,689                   
Trusteed bond funds 14,464,562                   
Held by trustee for self-insurance funding 1,404,437                     
Capital assets, net 203,733,895                 
Other assets 2,176,670                     

Total assets $ 342,050,744                 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities

Current installments of long-term debt $ 9,309,660                     
Current installments of capital lease obligations 646,435                        
Current installments of other long-term liability 1,098,567                     
Accounts payable 29,368,297                   
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 22,729,067                   
Other accrued expenses 1,258,909                     

Total current liabilities 64,410,935                   

Long-term debt, excluding current installments 96,309,943                   
Capital lease obligations, excluding current installments 1,259,652                     
Other long-term liability 1,693,924                     
Accrued workers' compensation and professional and general liability costs 5,073,307                     
Net pension liability 35,461,399                   
Net postemployment benefit obligation 18,118,420                   

Total liabilities 222,327,580                 

Net position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 74,993,534                   
Restricted - nonexpendable for

minority interest in blended component unit 658,913                        
Restricted - expendable for

debt service 17,242,027                   
Unrestricted 26,828,690                   

Total net position 119,723,164                 

Total liabilities and net position $ 342,050,744                 

See accompanying notes.

SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2013
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2013

Patient service revenues, net of provision
  for bad debts of $86,657,170 $     333,036,806 
Other revenues       12,703,906 

     Total operating revenues     345,740,712 

Operating expenses
  Salaries and wages     150,406,426 
  Employee benefits       39,041,719 
  Professional fees       17,739,179 
  Supplies       72,092,154 
  Purchased services       42,707,529 
  Other expenses       29,196,803 
  Depreciation and amortization       25,209,965 

     Total operating expenses     376,393,775 

     Loss from operations      (30,653,063)

Nonoperating revenue (expenses)
  Net investment income            745,924 
  Interest expense        (1,745,846)
  Minority interest in income of blended component unit           (693,738)
  Gain on disposal of capital assets              13,250 

     Total nonoperating expense (1,680,410)      

     Decrease in net position      (32,333,473)

Net position at beginning of year as previously reported     213,005,636 

  Restatement adjustment      (61,607,912)

Net position at beginning of year (restated)     151,397,724 

  Effect of adoption of GASB 61 (Note 1)            658,913 

Net position, end of year $     119,723,164 

See accompanying notes.

SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended September 30, 2013
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2013

Cash flows from operating activities
  Cash received from patients and third-party payors $       355,713,993 
  Cash paid to employees      (178,237,810)
  Cash paid to suppliers      (159,566,879)
  Cash received from other operating activities         12,703,906 

      Net cash provided by operating activities         30,613,210 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
  Distributions of capital made to minority owners
    of Ambulatory Services             (823,753)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
  Proceeds from long-term debt           3,000,000 
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets                63,612 
  Capital Expenditures        (21,256,237)
  Repayment of long-term debt          (4,545,758)
  Repayment of other long-term debt liability          (3,425,760)
  Repayment of capital lease obligaton             (356,974)

  Interest paid on long-term debt          (4,883,809)

      Net cash used in capital
        and related financing activities        (31,404,926)

Cash flows from investing activities
  Purchases of investments          (1,231,272)
  Proceeds from sale of investments         29,464,510 
  Investment income received                        -   

      Net cash provided by investing activities         28,233,238 

      Net increase in cash and cash equivalents         26,617,769 
 
  Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year         30,203,172 

  Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 56,820,941        

See accompanying notes.

SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEMS
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 2013 
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2013

Reconciliation of loss from operations to net
  cash provided by operating activities
    Loss from operations $       (30,653,063)
    Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations
      to net cash provided by operating activities
        Depreciation and amortization         25,209,965 
        Provision for bad debts         86,657,170 
        Changes in
          Patient receivables       (72,824,877)
          Estimated third-party payor settlements           8,844,894 
          Inventories and other current assets         (1,011,488)
          Net pension liability         11,197,568 
          Net post employment benefit obligation         (2,710,444)
          Accounts payable and other accrued expenses           4,685,178 
          Accrued workers' compensation and professional and
              general liability costs           1,218,307 

             Net cash provided by operating activities $ 30,613,210       

 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to 
      Cash and cash equivalents in current assets $ 42,445,680       
      Cash and cash equivalents in funds designated by
         Board for capital improvements 3,144,698         
      Cash and cash equivalents in trusteed bond funds 9,826,126         
      Cash and cash equivalents in trustee for self-insurance funding           1,404,437 

             Total $ 56,820,941       
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SINGING RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM 
Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1.  Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies 
 
Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity 
 
Singing River Health System (the "Health System") is a multidimensional healthcare system 
consisting of: 
 

 Singing River Hospital, a 435-bed hospital and related outpatient care and other facilities 
principally in Pascagoula, Mississippi. 

 Ocean Springs Hospital, a 136-bed hospital and related outpatient care and other facilities 
principally located in Ocean Springs, Mississippi. 

 Singing River Medical Park and Ocean Springs Medical Park, state-of-the-art outpatient 
services facilities designed to meet the specific needs of patients outside of the hospital 
setting.  These buildings house radiology and imaging services, cardiac rehabilitation, 
physical therapy, neurosciences, a branch of The Regional Cancer Center, The Center for 
Cardiovascular Surgery, and SRHS Healthplex. 

 The Neuroscience Center, which offers the most comprehensive neurosciences program 
in the region. 

 The Regional Cancer Center, which offers a comprehensive and integrated approach to 
cancer care comprised of expert medical and radiation oncologists, surgeons, radiologists, 
pharmacists, nurses and dietitians. 

 Seven primary care clinics located along the Mississippi Gulf Coast in D’Iberville, 
Gautier, Hurley, Pascagoula, Vancleave, Ocean Springs, and Biloxi. 
 

The Health System is a component unit of Jackson County, Mississippi, as defined by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Health System's component unit relationship to 
the County is principally due to financial accountability as defined by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). The Health System is operated by a nine-member Board 
of Trustees, seven of whom are appointed by the Board of Supervisors of Jackson County, 
Mississippi. Additionally, the chief-of-staff of the Health System serves on the Board. 
 
Budgetary Information 
 
The Health System is required by statute of the State of Mississippi to prepare a non-
appropriated annual budget.  The budget is not subject to appropriation and is therefore not 
required to be presented as supplementary information. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1.  Continued 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The Health System prepares its financial statements as a business-type activity in conformity 
with the applicable pronouncements of the GASB.  The accompanying financial statements of 
the Health System have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the economic 
resources measurement focus.  In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.  GASB 62 makes the GASB Accounting Standards 
Codification the sole source of authoritative accounting guidance for governmental entities in the 
United States of America.  In June 2011, the GASB also issued Statement No. 63, Financial 
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. 
 
Both of these statements became effective during the Health System's fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2013, and upon adoption did not have a significant impact on the Health System's 
financial position or changes therein. 
 
Blended Component Units 
 
Ambulatory Services is a component unit of the Health System and for financial reporting 
purposes only, presented as a blended component unit as of September 30, 2013 into the Health 
System's financial statements.  The Health System exerts control and there is a financial benefit 
relationship with this entity.  Ambulatory Services is operated by a Board of Directors, all of 
whom are appointed by the Health System's Board. All significant intercompany transactions 
between this entity and the Health System have been eliminated. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The accounting estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements will change as new 
events occur, as more experience is acquired and as additional information is obtained. Future 
events and their effects cannot be predicted with certainty; accordingly, our accounting estimates 
require the exercise of judgment. In particular, laws and regulations governing Medicare and 
Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at 
least a possibility that recorded estimates related to these programs will change by a material 
amount in the near term. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instruments with an original 
maturity of three months or less. 
 
Investments and Investment Income 

 
Investments are carried at fair value, principally based on quoted market prices. Investment 
income from investments is reported as nonoperating revenue. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1.  Continued 
 
Patient Accounts Receivable 
 
Patient accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value, after deduction of allowances for 
estimated uncollectible accounts and third-party contractual discounts.  The allowance for 
uncollectible accounts is based on historical allowances and an analysis of currently outstanding 
amounts.  This account is generally increased by charges to a provision for uncollectible 
accounts, and decreased by write-offs of accounts determined by management to be 
uncollectible.  The allowances for third-party discounts are based on the estimated differences 
between the Health System's established rates and the actual amounts to be received under each 
contract.  Changes in estimates by material amounts are reasonably possible in the near term. 
 
Inventories 

 
Inventories, consisting principally of medical supplies and pharmaceuticals, are stated at the 
lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or replacement market. 
 
Designated Funds and Funds Held by Trustees 

 
Designated funds include funds designated by the Board for capital improvements, over which 
the Board retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes. Funds 
held by trustees include funds held for debt service and self-insurance funding. 
 
Funds held by trustees for debt service under debt agreements that are required for obligations 
classified as current liabilities are reported as current assets. 
 
Capital Assets, Net 

 
Capital assets are recorded at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date of receipt. Depreciation 
is provided over the useful life of each class of depreciable asset using the straight-line method. 
Capital assets under capital lease obligations are amortized using the straight-line method over 
the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment. Major renewals and 
renovations are capitalized. Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. 
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are 
removed from the accounts and the gain or loss, if any, is included in nonoperating revenues 
(expenses) in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 
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Note 1.  Continued 
 
All capital assets other than land are depreciated or amortized (in the case of capital leases) using 
these asset lives: 
 

Land improvements  5 to 25 years
Buildings and improvements  10 to 40 years
Fixed equipment  5 to 25 years
Movable equipment  3 to 20 years
 
Capital assets are reviewed for impairment when service utility has declined significantly and 
unexpectedly. If such assets are no longer used, they are reported at the lower of carrying value 
or fair value. If such assets will continue to be used, the impairment loss is measured using a 
historical cost approach method that best reflects the diminished service utility of the capital 
asset. No charge related to impairment matters was required during 2013. 
 
Cost of Borrowing 
 
Bond issuance costs, deferred loss on refunding, and bond discounts and premiums are being 
amortized over the terms of the related indebtedness using the interest method. 
 
Interest cost is capitalized on qualified construction expenditures as a component of the cost of 
the related projects. Interest cost capitalized in 2013 was approximately $3,969,000. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
The Health System's employees accumulate paid time off, such as vacation, holiday and sick 
leave, at varying rates depending upon their years of continuous service and their payroll 
classification, subject to maximum limitations. Upon termination of employment, employees are 
paid all unused accrued vacation and holiday time at their regular rate of pay up to a designated 
maximum number of days. Since the employees' vacation and holiday time both accumulate and 
vest, an accrual for this liability is included in accrued payroll and employee benefits. 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position of the Health System is classified into the following components: 

 
Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any borrowings used to 
finance the purchase or construction of those assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not 
yet expended for capital assets, such debt is excluded from the calculation of net position 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
Net position restricted for debt service is amounts deposited with trustees as required by bond 
indentures or debt agreements. 
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Note 1.  Continued 
 
Unrestricted net position is remaining net position that does not meet the definition of invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt or restricted. 
 
Patient Service Revenues 
 
The Health System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the 
Health System at amounts different from its established rates.  Payment arrangements include 
prospectively determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges and per-diem 
payments.  Patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from patients, 
third-party payors and others for services rendered, and includes estimated retroactive 
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors.  Retroactive adjustments 
are considered in the recognition and accrual of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the 
related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods, as final settlements are determined. 
 
Charity Care 

 
The Health System provides medical care without charge or at a reduced charge to patients who 
meet certain criteria under its charity care policy.  Because the Health System does not pursue 
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these charges are not reported as net 
patient service revenue and are written off as charity care. 
 
Electronic Health Record Incentive Payments 
 
The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 provides for Medicare and Medicaid 
incentive payments beginning in 2011 for eligible hospitals and professionals that adopt and 
meaningfully use certified electronic health record ("EHR") technology. The Health System must 
also attest to certain criteria in order to qualify to receive the incentive payments. The amount of 
the incentive payments are calculated using predetermined formulas based on available 
information, primarily related to discharges and patient days. The Health System recognizes 
revenues related to Medicare incentive payments ratably over each EHR reporting period 
(October 1 to September 30) when it has demonstrated meaningful use requirements of certified 
EHR technology for the EHR reporting period. The Health System recognizes Medicaid 
incentive payments in the period that it qualifies for the funds based on the provisions of the 
DOM. 
 
The Health System recorded EHR incentive revenues of approximately $2,761,000, comprised of 
$2,518,000 of Medicare revenues and $243,000 of Medicaid revenues. EHR incentive revenues 
are included in other revenue in the accompanying 2013 statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position. EHR incentive receivables from Medicare and Medicaid (included in 
due from third-party payors) totaled approximately $2,003,000 and $490,000, respectively, at 
September 30, 2013. 
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Note 1.  Continued 
 
The Health System recorded $2,494,396 of receivables related to the Medicare and Medicaid 
incentive programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.  These receivables are reflected in 
other current assets on the accompanying statements of financial position.  Future incentive 
payments could vary due to certain factors such as availability of federal funding for both 
Medicare and Medicaid incentive payments and the Health System's ability to implement and 
demonstrate meaningful use of certified EHR technology. The Health System has and will 
continue to incur both capital costs and operating expenses in order to implement certified EHR 
technology and meet meaningful use requirements in the future. These expenses are ongoing and 
are projected to continue over all stages of implementation of meaningful use. The timing of 
recognizing the expenses may not correlate with the receipt of the incentive payments and the 
recognition of revenues. There can be no assurance that the Health System will continue to be 
able to demonstrate meaningful use of certified EHR technology in the future, and the failure to 
do so could have a material, adverse effect on the results of operations. As a part of operating 
this program, there is a possibility that government authorities may make adjustments to amounts 
previously recorded by the Health System.  
 
The Health System's attestation of demonstrating meaningful use is also subject to review by the 
appropriate government authorities.  The amount of revenue recognized is based on 
management's best estimate, which is subject to change. Such changes would be reflected in the 
period in which changes occur. 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
For purposes of presentation, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or 
central to the provision of healthcare services, other than financing costs, are reported as 
operating revenues and operating expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions, such as net 
investment income, interest expense, minority interests, grants from others and gain (loss) on 
disposal of capital assets, are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Income Taxes 

 
The Health System is a not-for-profit entity as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (the "Code") and is exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income 
pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. The Health System is also a political subdivision of 
Jackson County, Mississippi and is operated as a community hospital under related statutes of 
the State of Mississippi. 
 
New Accounting Standards Adopted 

 
In 2013, the Health System adopted three new accounting standards as follows: 
 
In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity that 
clarifies the requirements for reporting component units and addresses the presentation of
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Note 1.  Continued 
 
minority interests.  The implementation required the Health System to move its minority interest 
in blended component unit from being reported between liabilities and net position to being 
reported as nonexpendable net position on the statement of net position.  The net position at 
October 1, 2012 was decreased by $788,928 over the amount that was previously reported.  
 
In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements.  GASB 62 makes the GASB Accounting Standards Codification the sole 
source of authoritative accounting guidance for governmental entities in the United States of 
America.  The adoption of this accounting standard did not have a material impact on the Health 
System's financial statements. 
 
In June 2011, the GASB also issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position.  This statement provides 
financial reporting standards guidance for deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of 
resources and identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in the 
statement of financial position.  The adoption of this accounting standard did not have a material 
impact on the Health System's financial statements. 
 
 
Note 2.  Restatement 
 
The accompanying financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013 include 
a restatement adjustment to the net position as of September 30, 2012 to reflect a correction in 
the Health System's net realizable value of patient accounts receivable.  As a result of 
management's review of its methodology to estimate the net realization of patient accounts 
receivable, management determined that valuation allowances did not sufficiently incorporate 
historical collections against certain patient charges.  The net realizable value of the Health 
System's patient accounts receivable was overstated by approximately $61,608,000 as of 
September 30, 2012. 
 

 
Note 3.  Plan of Operation 
 
In order to improve operations, management has implemented a plan to maximize net patient 
revenue and minimize operating expenses.  A consultant was engaged to reorganize the revenue 
cycle, including redesign of the patient access and financial services functions, initiation of a 
formal denials management process, implementation of an enhanced accounts receivable 
collection strategy, reduction of costs to collect, and process improvement for better charge 
capture.  Another initiative to maximize revenue was launched to negotiate managed care 
contracts, where the Health System has significant upside.  With respect to operating expenses, 
the management team has been restructured to a more efficient model and the Health System has 
operationalized a cost reduction plan focused on initiatives ranging from labor productivity, 
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benefits redesign, reorganization of primary care clinic strategy, supply chain management 
enhancements and others.  While all initiatives will be centered around clinical quality as the 
foundation, these operational strategies should return the Health System to a positive margin. 

 
Note 4.  Net Patient Service Revenue 
 
The Health System has agreements with governmental and other third-party payors that provide 
for reimbursement to the Health System at amounts different from its established rates. 
Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs represent the difference 
between the Health System's billings at established rates for services and amounts reimbursed by 
third-party payors. A summary of the basis of reimbursement with major third-party payors 
follows: 

 
Medicare – Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are 
paid at prospectively determined rates.  These rates vary according to the patient 
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors.  Outpatient 
services related to Medicare beneficiaries are reimbursed through a prospective payment 
system commonly known as Ambulatory Payment Classification ("APC").  Under the 
APC system, certain medical devices and drugs are reimbursed at cost or average 
wholesale price.  Long-term care services are reimbursed under a prospective payment 
system that considers the Medicare beneficiaries’ severity of illness among other clinical 
factors.  Inpatient non-acute services are paid based on a prospective payment system.  
The Health System is reimbursed for cost-reimbursable items at a tentative rate, with 
final settlement determined after submission and review by the fiscal intermediary of 
annual cost reports.  Revenue from the Medicare program accounted for approximately 
37 percent of the Health System's net patient service revenue for the year ended 
September 30, 2013. 

 
 Medicaid – Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries 

are reimbursed based upon a prospective reimbursement methodology.  The Health 
System is reimbursed at a prospective rate, which is adjusted annually based on published 
market basket update (inpatient) or adjusted cost to charge ratios per annual cost reports 
(outpatient) as submitted by the Health System and settled by the Medicaid fiscal 
intermediary.  Beginning September 1, 2012, the Medicaid program changed to an APC 
system for outpatient payments and beginning October 1, 2012, an APR-DRG system for 
inpatient payments.  Revenue from the Medicaid program accounted for approximately 
15 percent of the Health System's net patient service revenue for year ended September 
30, 2013. 

 
The Health System participates in the Mississippi Intergovernmental Transfer Program as a 
Medicaid Disproportionate Share Hospital ("DSH") and in the Medicaid Upper Payment Limit 
Program ("UPL").  Under these programs, the Health System receives enhanced reimbursement 
through a matching mechanism.   
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For the year ended September 30, 2013, the Health System received approximately $15,220,000 
in enhanced reimbursement through the DSH program.  The net benefit to the Health System 
associated with participation in the UPL program was approximately $3,812,000 for the year 
ended September 30, 2013.  DSH amounts are recorded as a reduction of contractual 
adjustments.  UPL amounts, net of related tax assessments of approximately $11,231,000 for the 
year ended September 30, 2013, are also shown as a reduction of contractual adjustments.  There 
can be no assurance that the Health System will continue to qualify for future participation in 
these programs or that the programs will not ultimately be discontinued or materially modified. 
 
Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex 
and subject to interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded 
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.  The 2013 revenue decreased 
approximately $2,576,575, due to retroactive adjustments in excess of amounts previously 
estimated.  As of September 30, 2013, cost reports for fiscal years 2009 and prior have been 
settled. 

The Health System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance 
carriers and preferred provider organizations.  The basis for payment to the Health System under 
these agreements includes prospectively determined rates and discounts from established charges 
and prospectively determined per diem rates. 
 
The composition of net patient service revenue follows: 
 

       2013

Gross patient service revenue   $ 1,795,038,817
Less provision for contractual and other adjustments   1,375,344,841
Less provision for bad debts   86,657,170

 Net patient service revenue  $ 333,036,806
 
In the spring of 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and 
Education Reconciliation Act (collectively, the "Health Care Acts") were signed into law by 
President Obama. The impact of the Health Care Acts is complicated and difficult to predict, but 
the Health System anticipates its reimbursement in the future will be affected by major elements  
of the Health Care Acts designed to (1) increase insurance coverage, (2) change provider and 
payor behavior, and (3) encourage alternative delivery models. Many healthcare reform variables 
remain unknown and are, among other things, dependent on implementation by federal and state 
governments and reactions by providers, payors, employers and individuals. The Health System 
continues to monitor developments in healthcare reform and participates actively in 
contemplating and designing new programs that are encouraged or required by the Health Care 
Acts. 
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Note 5.  Charity Care 
 

The Health System maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. 
These records include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished under 
its charity care policy. Charges foregone, based on established rates, were approximately 
$93,660,000 in 2013. 

 
 

Note 6.  Captial Assets 
 

Capital assets and related activity for the year ended September 30, 2013 consisted of the 
following: 

 
       Balance    Balance 
       October 1,    September 30,
        2012 Additions Retirements  2013 

Capital assets not being depreciated     
    Land  $ 7,461,539 $ -    $ -     $ 7,461,539 

Construction in progress 28,917,661 23,315,958 (13,196,029) 39,037,590 

Total capital assets not    

being depreciated 36,379,200 23,315,958 (13,196,029) 46,499,129 
    

Capital assets being depreciated    
Land improvements 6,266,886 55,247 -     6,322,133 
Buildings and improvements 157,101,526 10,589,357 (31,000) 167,659,883 
Fixed equipment 14,441,173 1,613 (3,078) 14,439,708 
Movable equipment 231,860,941 4,591,276 (4,057,623) 232,394,594 

Total capital assets    

being depreciated 409,670,526 15,237,493 (4,091,701) 420,816,318 
    

Less accumulated depreciation for    
Land improvements 3,359,234 248,653 -     3,607,887 
Buildings and improvements 85,745,053 6,722,032 (31,000) 92,436,085 
Fixed equipment 11,677,051 198,856 (3,078) 11,872,829 
Movable equipment 144,719,546 14,952,466 (4,007,261) 155,664,751 

Total accumulated    

depreciation 245,500,884 22,122,007 (4,041,339) 263,581,552 

Capital assets being depreciated,    

    net 164,169,642 (6,884,514) (50,362) 157,234,766 

Capital assets, net $ 200,548,842 $ 16,431,444 $ (13,246,391) $ 203,733,895 
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Construction in progress as of September 30, 2013 consisted primarily of expenditures 
associated with the addition of a new patient care floor, renovations to patient care areas, 
pharmacy, as well as the expansions of the emergency department, labor and delivery, relocation 
of emergency power system electrical upgrade and capitalized software license and support fees 
related to the information technology contract described in Note 9. The Health System has 
associated purchase commitments totaling approximately $26,249,000 at September 30, 2013, 
which will be funded through bond proceeds and designated funds. Completion dates are 
expected to range from fiscal 2014 through 2015. 

 
 

Note 7.  Leases 
 

The Health System was obligated under several capital leases at September 30, 2013. Scheduled 
future payments on capital lease obligations are as follows: 

 
      Principal  Interest 

2014    $ 646,435 $ 194,337 
2015     647,988 121,091 
2016     611,664 43,228 

     Total $ 1,906,087 $ 358,656 
 
A schedule of changes in the Health System's capital lease obligation balances for the year ended 
September 30, 2013 follows: 

 
          Balance        Balance          Due 
        Interest Date of October 1,   September 30,   Within 

Description  rate Issuance 2012 Additions Retired    2013 One Year

Subsidiary equipment leases 
 

  
 note (a)       
 Facility Development, LLC 7.71% 10/1/2001 $ 1,534,788 $ -    $(119,607) $ 1,415,181 $ 406,732
 Hancock Bank  6.00 12/10/2009 3,630  -    (3,630)  -    -    
 Hancock Bank  6.00 3/30/2010 2,215  -    (2,215)  -    -    
 Hancock Bank  5.00 12/20/2009 3,171  -    (3,171)  -    -    
 Hancock Bank  6.00 3/10/2010 67,284  -    (25,799)  41,485 25,175
 Hancock Bank  5.50 10/20/2010 40,719  -    (19,822)  20,897 18,684
 Hancock Bank  5.25 5/20/2011 31,593  -    (12,719)  18,874 11,827
 Hancock Bank  5.25 4/10/2011 87,240  -    (33,626)  53,614 33,680
 Hancock Bank  5.00 2/20/2011 5,728  -    (4,249)  1,479 1,479
 Hancock Bank  5.25 12/10/2011 59,168  -    (17,710)  41,458 18,321
 Hancock Bank  5.50 4/10/2012 137,817 -    (36,211)  101,606 38,069
 Hancock Bank  5.50 4/20/2012 77,069 -    (20,172)  56,897 21,296
 Hancock Bank  5.25 12/10/2011 59,168 -    (17,710)  41,458 18,321
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          Balance        Balance          Due 
        Interest Date of October 1,   September 30,   Within 

Description  rate Issuance 2012 Additions Retired    2013 One Year
 Hancock Bank  5.55 4/10/2012 21,206  -    (13,178)  8,028 8,028

 Hancock Bank  5.00 11/30/2012 -    132,265 (27,155)  105,110 44,823

         $ 2,130,796 $ 132,265 $(356,974) $ 1,906,087 $ 646,435 

 
Note (a) – These leases are obligations of blended component units of Ambulatory Services.   
 
Capital assets totaling approximately $4,992,000 are related to the above capital lease obligations 
at September 30, 2013. Related accumulated amortization was approximately $3,735,000 at 
September 30, 2013. 

 
Rental expense for all operating leases was approximately $6,456,000 in 2013. There are no 
significant noncancelable operating leases at September 30, 2013. Management expects that 
most lease agreements will be replaced, as they expire, with similar agreements. 
 

 
Note 8.  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 
The Health System's bank balances at September 30, 2013 follows: 

 
        2013 

Insured by the FDIC   $ 1,000,000
Uninsured, uncollateralized, or collateralized by securities   

 held by the pledging institution or by its trust department   
 or agent in other than the Health System's name    57,325,522

  Total   $ 58,325,522

Carrying amount (cash and cash equivalents)   $ 56,820,941
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A summary of investments follows for September 2013: 

 
       Value Percentage Maturities Rate Rating

September 30, 2013   
 Mississippi Hospital Association   
  pooled investments $ 12,844,991 62.96% N/A N/A N/A 
 U.S. Treasury obligation  375,000 1.87 Various 0.0% N/A 

 
U.S. Government agency    
  obligations 3,568,759 17.83 Various 4.80% N/A 
 Wachovia repurchase agreement 3,145,160 15.71 3/1/2023 4.10% N/A 
 Municipal debt securities  326,982 1.63 1/1/2014 4.00% N/A 

     Total $ 20,260,892 100.00%  
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, an organization's deposits may 
not be returned. The Health System has a deposit policy for custodial credit risk that requires 
deposits to be collateralized by securities held by the pledging institution or its trust department 
or agent in other than the Health System's name. 
 
The Mississippi Hospital Association pooled investments is an investment program administered 
by the Mississippi Hospital Association that principally invests in corporate and U.S. 
Government agency obligations and money market funds. 
 
All funds designated by the Board would otherwise be classified as cash, cash equivalents or 
other current assets, except for the Health System Board of Trustees' designation of such assets 
as held for the acquisition of long-term assets or the settlement of long-term obligations. All 
noncash funds designated by the Board have sufficient liquidity such that, at the discretion of the 
Health System's Board, they can be converted to cash as necessary. 

 
Various funds were established in accordance with the requirements of the indentures related to 
the Series 2009A, Series 2009B and Series 2011 Bonds discussed in Note 9. 
 
A summary of the funds follows: 

 
        2013 

Reserve funds – long term   $ 10,202,994
Principal and interest funds – current    2,777,465
Capital improvement funds – long term     4,261,568

        $ 17,242,027
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The reserve funds are generally equal to the maximum annual principal and interest requirements 
(as defined) for the revenue bonds. The principal and interest funds are for the annual debt 
service of the revenue bonds. The capital improvement funds represent proceeds of the revenue 
bonds to be used to fund costs of construction and installation of equipment and facilities. 
Deposits classified as current assets represent funds to be used to pay debt service and cost of 
issuance amounts classified as current liabilities at September 30. 
 
The Health System does not have its own investment strategy; however, being a governmental 
entity, it follows the guidelines set forth by the State of Mississippi, which include the following: 

1. Liquidity – To ensure the ability to meet all expected or unexpected cash flow needs by 
investing in securities which can be sold readily and efficiently. 

2. Cash, money market funds and certificates of deposit that are either appropriately 
collateralized, insured or issued by investment grade financial institutions. 

3. Investment agreements, including guaranteed investment contracts ("GIC"), commercial 
paper, repurchase agreements and other securities as required by the State of Mississippi. 

 
Investment income is comprised of the following: 

 
        2013 

Dividend and interest income   $ 413,497
Net increase in the fair value of investments    332,427
          
        $ 745,924
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Note 9.  Long-Term Debt 
 
A summary of long-term debt based on contractual requirements is as follows: 

 
        2013 

Note payable to bank, balance due October 2013 including  
    interest of 3.25 percent   $ 3,000,000  

Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation     
 Bonds – Series 2011    36,320,000 
  Plus unamortized bond premium   1,016,901 

        37,336,901 
Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation    

 Bonds – Series 2009A    32,940,000 
  Less unamortized bond discount   (893,478) 

         32,046,522 
Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Refunding  

 Bonds – Series 2009B    37,560,000 
  Less unamortized bond discount    (161,330) 
  Less unamortized deferred loss on refunding   (4,397,150) 

         33,001,520 
Note payable to bank, due in monthly installments of     
    $47,320, including interest at 3.25 percent, final balloon     
    payment due February 2014    234,660 

         105,619,603 

Less current installments, based on contractual terms    9,309,660 

  Long-term debt, excluding current     
    contractual installments  $ 96,309,943 
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On April 2, 2009, the Health System issued $35,000,000 of Special Obligation Bonds (the Series 
2009A Bonds) through MDB. The purpose of the bonds was to provide funding for constructing, 
remodeling, adding to, equipping and furnishing an addition to and expansion of the Health 
System, funding a debt service reserve fund for the Series 2009A bonds and paying cost of 
issuance on the Series 2009A bonds. The bonds consist of $6,455,000 of serial bonds and 
$28,545,000 term bonds bearing fixed rates ranging from 3.0 percent to 5.625 percent. 
 
On October 27, 2009 the Health System refunded the Series 2008A bonds, outstanding in the 
amount of $44,000,000, with the Series 2009 B-l and 2009 B-2 bonds. The Series 2009 B-l and 
2009 B-2 bonds are fixed rate bonds secured by a bond insurance policy provided by Assured 
Guaranty and a five mill pledge of the assessed real and personal property by Jackson County.  
 
The Series 2009 B-l and B-2 Bonds were issued by the MDB as fixed interest rate securities and 
pay interest semiannually (January 1 and July 1) and principal annually (July 1 with the 
exception of the 2023 payment which is March 1). The Series 2009 B-l Bonds of $48,340,000 
mature on March 1, 2023 and the Series 2009 B-2 Bonds of $2,395,000 matured on July 1, 2012. 
 
On July 27, 2011, the Health System issued $36,610,000 of Special Obligation Bonds (the Series 
2011 Bonds). The purpose of the 2011 Bonds is to provide funding for an electronic medical 
record system, constructing, remodeling, adding to, equipping and furnishing an addition to and 
expansion of the Health System, funding a debt service reserve fund, paying capitalized interest 
and paying costs of issuance on the Series 2011 Bonds. The bonds are fixed rate bonds secured 
by a bond insurance policy provided by Assured Guaranty and a five mill pledge of the assessed 
real and personal property by Jackson County. The Series 2011 Bonds were issued by the MDB 
and pay interest semiannually (January 1 and July 1) and principal annually  
(July 1). The bonds consist of $28,255,000 Serial Bonds maturing on July 1, 2023, $4,490,000 of 
Term Bonds maturing on July 1, 2031 and $3,865,000 of Term Bonds maturing on July 1, 2036 
and are at fixed rates ranging from 3.0 percent to 5.375 percent. 
 
Under the terms of the respective loan agreements in connection with the Series 2009A Bonds, 
the Series 2009 B-1 Bonds, the Series 2009 B-2 Bonds and the Series 2011 Bonds, the Health 
System is obligated to meet certain financial covenants including availability of cash, debt 
service coverage and limitations on additional debt.  On July 15, 2014, the loan agreements were 
amended to state that a failure to comply with the financial covenants set forth in the bond 
agreements are not events of default.  Rather, the amendments provide that the Bond Insurer may 
determine, at their sole discretion, whether a financial covenant violation constitutes an event of 
default.  At September 30, 2013, the Health System was not in compliance with certain financial 
covenants of the respective loan agreements.  The Health System subsequently received waivers 
of certain of these instances of noncompliance from the Bond Insurer of the 2009 and 2011 
bonds.  Based upon current forecasted results, management believes the Health System will not 
meet these financial covenant requirements at the next measurement dates in fiscal year 2014.  
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Because management does not believe it is probable the Bond Insurer will consider the expected 
future covenant violations through September 30, 2014 events of default, the principal balances 
outstanding are classified in the accompanying statement of net position based upon their 
contractual maturities.  
 
Through its investment in Ambulatory Services, the Health System had $1,000,000 and $400,000 
line of credit agreements with a bank to finance operating costs.  No amounts have been 
advanced on either line of credit as of September 30, 2013.  Interest on both agreements accrues 
at 5.0 percent. The agreements mature on October 15, 2014. 
 
Debt service requirements associated with the Health System's long-term debt follow: 
 

       Principal  Interest  Total 

Year ended September 30     
2014    $ 9,309,660 $ 5,028,990 $ 14,338,650 
2015     6,280,000  4,819,406  11,099,406 
2016     6,550,000  4,548,106  11,098,106 
2017     6,835,000  4,263,194  11,098,194 
2018     7,135,000  3,963,894  11,098,894 
2019 – 2023     40,660,000  14,830,383  55,490,383 
2024 – 2028     8,260,000  8,229,400  16,489,400 
2029 – 2033     10,675,000  5,809,469  16,484,469 
2034 – 2038     12,085,000  2,590,556  14,675,556 
Thereafter     2,265,000  127,406  2,392,406 

      $ 110,054,660 $ 54,210,804 $ 164,265,464 
 
A schedule of changes in the Health System's long-term debt balances for the year ended  
September 30, 2013 follows: 

 

        Date of 
Balance 

October 1,  
Balance 

September 30, 
Due 

within 
Description  issuance 2012 Additions Retired  2013 one year 

Note payable to bank   9/30/2013 $ -    $ 3,000,000 $ -     $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000
Note payable to bank  2/26/2009  784,918 -     (550,258)  234,660 234,660
Notes payable to banks 
(blended component units      
  of Ambulatory Services)  Various 35,500 -     (35,500)  -     -    
Series 2009B   10/27/2009 40,580,000 -     (3,020,000)  37,560,000 3,140,000
Series 2009A   4/2/2009 33,590,000 -     (650,000)  32,940,000 670,000
Series 2011   7/27/2011 36,610,000 -     (290,000)  36,320,000 2,265,000

        $ 111,600,418 $ 3,000,000 $ (4,545,758) $ 110,054,660 $ 9,309,660
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The Health System entered into a five-year software and services agreement with a major 
information technology vendor in 2011. The agreement generally commits the Health System to 
the purchase of a variety of information technology products and services from this vendor for a 
defined payment stream over the term of the contract. Certain software license and support fees 
(totaling approximately $13,992,400) were capitalized during  fiscal 2011 with recognition of an 
associated liability related to the Health System's acquisition of these intangible assets.   Such 
costs are amortized as the software is placed in service during fiscal years 2012 through 2014.  
Implied training costs of approximately $273,400 are being amortized over the implicit training 
period of thirty months.  Such costs are included in other assets in the accompanying 2013 
statement of financial position.  Other contract costs are evaluated for capitalization or expense 
recognition under relevant accounting literature as associated products and/or services are 
provided.  Software costs placed in service, including amounts associated with the software and 
services agreement, during 2013, including amounts associated with software and service 
agreements, were approximately $794,000. 
 
The following table summarizes the future payment commitments by year under the contract as 
of September 30, 2013: 
 

        Capitalized 

        
Software 

Costs 
        Obligation 

2014     $ 1,199,748 
2015      1,417,886 
2016      327,204 

    Total  2,944,838 
Less amounts representing interest at 4.6 percent  (152,347)

    Total obligation  2,792,491 
Less current portion   (1,098,567)
Long-term obligation (included as other long-term   
  liability in the accompanying 2013 statement of net position) $ 1,693,924 
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Interest paid under the agreement in fiscal 2013 was $161,933. 
 
The following is a summary of the changes in the Health System's long-term obligation for fiscal 
2013: 
 

        2013 

Balance at October 1   $ 6,218,251 
  Additions    -     
  Retired    (3,425,760)
     
Balance at September 30   $ 2,792,491 
 
 
Note 11.  Pension Plan 
 
Singing River Health System Employees' Retirement Plan and Trust (the "Plan") is a 
single-employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored and administered by the Health System. 
The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to Plan members and beneficiaries. 
For the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, cost-of-living adjustments were provided to 
members and beneficiaries equal to 1/2 of the percentage increase in the consumer price index, 
not to exceed 2.5 percent, multiplied by annual retirement income (as defined) times the number 
of Plan years (as defined) since retirement. The Health System's Board of Trustees is authorized 
to establish and amend all provisions. The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes the applicable financial statements and required supplementary information. The report 
may be obtained at the Health System's offices. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
The contribution requirements of employees and the Health System are established and may be 
amended by the Health System's Board of Trustees. Employees contribute 3 percent of their 
annual salary (maximum salary amount of $250,000 for each of the calendar year) to the Plan. 
The Health System is responsible for contributing the remaining amounts necessary to fund the 
Plan at an actuarially determined rate. 
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Liability 
 
A reconciliation of the Health System's annual pension cost and related net pension liability 
follows: 

 
         2013 

Annual required contribution   $ 11,434,823 
Interest on net pension liability    2,060,640 
Adjustment to annual required contribution    (2,297,895) 

 Annual pension cost    11,197,568 
Contributions    -     

 Increase in net pension liability    11,197,568 
Net pension liability, beginning of year    24,263,831 

Net pension liability, end of year   $ 35,461,399 
 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the  
October 1, 2012 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The 
actuarial assumptions included (a) 8.5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses) in 2013 and (b) projected salary increases of 2.8 percent for 2013. Both (a) and 
(b) included a cost of living adjustment of 1.0 percent for 2013. The actuarial value of Plan 
assets are valued on the basis of their fair value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining 
amortization period at October 1, 2012 was 27.8 years. 
 
Three-Year Trend Information 

 
      Percentage  
      Pension cost of APC   Pension

Fiscal Year Ended (APC) contributed  liability

September 30, 2011 $ 7,208,112 - $ 15,445,331
September 30, 2012 8,818,500 -  24,263,831
September 30, 2013 11,197,568 -  35,461,399
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Schedule of Funding Progress – Required Supplementary Information 

 
Analysis of the Plan's funding progress follows: 

 

        Actuarial  
Actuarial 
value of  

Actuarial 
accrued 
liability 

Plan assets 
less than Funded  Covered  

Plan assets 
less than AAL 
as a percent of 

covered 
valuation date  plan assets  (AAL) AAL ratio  payroll payroll 

October 1, 2010 $ 145,900,190 $ 189,363,614 $ (43,463,424) 77.0 $ 120,759,213 (36.0)
October 1, 2011  141,398,027  200,328,271 (58,930,244) 70.6  120,697,220 (48.8)
October 1, 2012  134,236,418  212,324,494 (78,088,076) 63.2  117,403,165 (66.5)

 
 
Note 11.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan 

 
Singing River Health System Postretirement Medical Plan (the "Health Plan") is a single-
employer defined benefit healthcare plan sponsored and administered by the Health System. The 
Health Plan provides medical and drug benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. The Health 
System's Board of Trustees is authorized to establish and amend all provisions. The Health 
System does not issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the Health Plan. 
 
Funding Policy 

 
The contribution requirements of employees and the Health System are established and may be 
amended by the Health System's Board of Trustees. Monthly contributions are required by 
retirees who are eligible for coverage. The Health System pays for costs in excess of required 
retiree contributions. The required contribution for the Health Plan is based on projected pay-as-
you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2013 the Health System contributed 
approximately $1,266,000 to the Health Plan. The Health Plan members receiving benefits 
contributed approximately $318,766 in fiscal 2013 through their required contributions. Monthly 
contributions required by retirees depend on the service period at time of retirement (less than 
20 years vs. 20 years or more) and the type of coverage (single or family). For active employees 
as of February 2011, contributions upon retirement increased starting January 1, 2012 to the full 
blended premium rates developed by the Health System. Similar increases will be required 
effective January 1, 2014 for participants who were retired as of February 2011.  The following 
table summarizes the monthly contribution rates for 2013: 
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      Service  Single  Family 

Retired prior to February 2011   
 Less than 20 years $ 276.79 $ 582.53 
 20 years or more  130.09  262.14 
          

Retired February 2011 and later $ 553.58 $ 1,165.06 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

 
The Health System's annual other postemployment benefit ("OPEB") cost (benefit) is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution of the employer ("ARC"), an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a 
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of 27.8 years. The 
following table shows the components of the Health System's annual OPEB cost for the year, the 
amount actually contributed to the Health Plan and changes in the Health System's net OPEB 
obligation: 

        2013 

Annual required contribution and annual OPEB    
 cost (benefit)   $ (1,444,161) 

Contributions     (1,266,283) 

Increase in net OPEB obligation    2,710,444 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year    20,828,864 

Net OPEB obligation, end of year   $ 18,118,420 
          

 
Three-Year Trend Information 

 
       Percentage of   
      Annual annual OPEB   
      OPEB cost cost  Net OPEB 

Fiscal Year Ended  (benefit) contributed  obligation 

September 30, 2011 $ 5,000,000 34.1 $ 18,541,562 
September 30, 2012  3,681,424 37.9  20,828,864 
September 30, 2013  (1,444,161) (87.7)  18,118,420 
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Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
As of October 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Health Plan was not funded. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,557,436, resulting in an unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability ("UAAL") of $1,557,436. The annual payroll of active employees covered by 
the Health Plan was $124,790,420 and the ratio of UAAL to covered payroll was 1.2 percent. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the Health Plan and the annual required contributions 
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, as 
presented below as required supplementary information, presents multiyear trend information 
about whether the actuarial value of Health Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Schedule of Funding Progress – Required Supplementary Information 
 
Analysis of the Health Plan's funding status follows: 

 

         Plan assets less 
    Actuarial     than AAL as of 

Actuarial  
Valuation  

 Actuarial 
Value Of 

 Accrued 
Liability 

Plan Assets 
Less Than 

 
Funded 

 
Covered 

 a percent of 
covered  

Date  Plan Assets  (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll  payroll 

October 1, 2010 $ - $ 21,183,982 $ 21,183,982 - $ 117,419,669    18.0%  
October 1, 2011  -  14,292,416 14,492,416 - 124,790,420    11.5%  
October 1, 2012  -  1,557,436 1,557,436 - 124,790,420  1.3%  

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Health Plan 
(the Health Plan as understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit 
costs between the employer and Health Plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the 
long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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In the October 1, 2012, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was 
used. The actuarial assumptions include a 4 percent investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses), which is a long-term rate of return on general account assets, and an 
annual inflation rate and annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.5 percent in fiscal year 2013, 
reduced 1/2 percent each year until it reaches an annual rate of 5 percent in 2020. The initial 
UAAL is being amortized over a ten-year period on the level dollar method on an open basis. All 
additions to the liability, such as annual actuarial gains (losses), are amortized over 30 years. 
  
 
Note 13.  Business and Credit Concentrations 
 
The Health System grants credit to patients, substantially all of whom are local area residents. 
The Health  System generally does not require collateral or other security in extending credit to 
patients; however, it routinely obtains assignment of (or is otherwise entitled to receive) patients' 
benefits payable under their health insurance programs, plans or policies (e.g., Medicare, 
Medicaid, Blue Cross and commercial insurance policies). 
 
The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors follows: 

 
        2013 

Medicare      34% 
Commerical insurance    33 
Patients    17 
Blue Cross     10 
Medicaid     6 

         100% 
 
 
Note 14. Risk Management 

 
Effective October 1, 2003, the Health System implemented a self-insurance program for 
professional and general liability risks, both with respect to claims incurred after the effective 
date of the program and claims incurred but not reported prior to that date. The Health System 
has not acquired any excess coverage for its self-insurance because the Health System is a 
community hospital organized in accordance with the community statutes of the State of 
Mississippi and, as such, is afforded sovereign immunity in accordance with the Mississippi Tort 
Claims Act. Presently, sovereign immunity limits losses to $500,000 per claim. Consistent with 
this insurance program change (and in accordance with the process described below), the Health 
System recorded an accrual for self-insured losses totaling approximately $3,091,000 as of 
September 30, 2013. Prior to October 1, 2003, the Health System's insurance coverages for 
professional and general liability risks were provided under claims-made policies. 
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Incurred losses identified through the Health System's incident reporting system and incurred but 
not reported losses are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Health System's current 
inventory of reported claims and historical experience, as well as considerations such as the 
nature of each claim or incident, relevant trend factors and advice from consulting actuaries. The 
Health System has established a self-insurance trust fund for payment of liability claims and 
makes deposits to the fund in amounts determined by consulting actuaries. 
 
The following is a summary of changes in the Health System's self-insurance liability for 
professional and general liability costs for fiscal 2013: 

 
         2013 

Balance at October 1   $ 1,925,000 
Provisions for claims reported and claims      

 incurred but not reported    1,166,000 
Claims paid    -     

Balance at September 30   $ 3,091,000 
 
Like many other businesses, the Health System is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; 
theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; 
employee injuries and illness; natural disasters and professional and general liability claims and 
judgments. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for most claims arising from such 
matters. Claims settled through September 30, 2013 have not exceeded this commercial coverage 
in any of the three preceding years. 
 
Prior to 2003, the Health System purchased insurance to cover workers' compensation claims. 
During 2003, the Health System purchased high-deductible workers' compensation insurance, 
which had the effect that the Health System is largely self-insured. 
 
The following is a summary of changes in the Health System's self-insurance liability for 
worker's compensation coverages for fiscal 2013: 

 
         2013 

Balance at October 1   $ 2,610,000 
Provisions for claims reported and claims      

 incurred but not reported    848,000 
Claims paid     (738,000)

Balance at September 30   $ 2,720,000 
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At September 30, 2013, approximately $738,000 of the above self-insurance liability is included 
in accrued payroll and employee benefits in the accompanying statement of financial position. 
 
The Health System is self-insured for employee health coverage up to a limit of $500,000 per 
individual claim. The Health System maintains coverage with a third-party carrier for excess 
losses up to $1 million (specific lifetime reimbursement per covered person). 
 
The following is a summary of changes in the Health System's self-insurance liability for 
employee health coverage (included in accrued payroll and employee benefits in the 
accompanying statement of net position) for fiscal 2013: 
 

         2013 

Balance at October 1   $ 3,892,000 
Provisions for claims reported and claims      

 incurred but not reported    25,179,000 
Claims paid     (25,413,000)

Balance at September 30   $ 3,658,000 
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Note 15.  Blended Component Unit 
 
Singing River Ambulatory Services, Inc. 
 
The Condensed Statement of Net Position, Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position and the Condensed Statement of Cash Flows as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2013 is detailed below: 
 
 September 30,
 2013

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
  

Assets    
  Current assets   $ 5,655,432
  Capital assets    10,377,475
    Total assets   $ 16,032,907
    
Liabilities    
  Current liabilities   $ 1,230,074
  Noncurrent liabilities    1,307,837
  Due to Health System    1,447,015
    Total liabilities    3,984,926
    
Net position    
  Invested in capital assets    8,028,014
  Restricted – nonexpendable for minority interest    658,913
  Unrestricted    3,361,054
    Total net position    12,047,981
    
    Total liabilities and net position   $ 16,032,907
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Year Ended 

September 30, 
   2013 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
   
Operating revenues   $ 8,725,725
Operating expenses   6,894,129

  Operating income   1,831,596
Nonoperating expense   (1,151,391)

  Increase in net position   680,205
   
Net position, beginning of year   11,367,776
   
Net position, end of year   $ 12,047,981
   
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows   

Cash provided by investing activities   $ 2,712,967
   
Cash used by noncapital financing activities   (823,753)
   
Cash used by capital and related financing activities   (1,458,414)

  Increase in cash and cash equivalents   430,800
   
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year   3,198,559
   
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year   $ 3,629,359

 
 

Note 16.  Recent Reporting and Disclosure Developments 
 
Accounting Pronouncements Issued Not Yet Adopted 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65 ("GASB 65") 
 
The Health System will adopt GASB No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, 
in fiscal year 2014.  This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that 
reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain line items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.  Some of  
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the major changes will be showing any gain or loss on debt refunding as a deferred inflow/outflow 
on the statement of net position instead of an addition or subtraction from the related debt (similar 
to a discount or premium).  Also, debt issue costs will no longer be able to be capitalized and 
would be expensed when incurred.  Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this 
standard. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 66 ("GASB 66") 
 
The Health System will adopt GASB No. 66, Technical Corrections – 2012 – an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 10 and No. 62, in fiscal year 2014.  This Statement amends GASB No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for 
operating lease payments that vary from a straight-line basis.  Management is currently evaluating 
the impact of adopting this standard. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 ("GASB 68") 
 
The Health System will adopt GASB No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension, in 
fiscal year 2015.  This statement requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to 
recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more 
comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The statement also 
enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note disclosures and RSI.  In 
the past as long as a government paid its Annual Required Contribution, there would be no 
recorded liability.  This will provide for the liability (net pension obligation) of underfunding of 
defined benefit pension plans to be recorded on the statement of net position. The net pension 
liability is the difference between the total pension liability (the present value of projected benefit 
payments to employees based on their past service) and the assets (mostly investments reported at 
fair value) set aside in a trust and restricted to paying benefits to current employees, retirees and 
their beneficiaries.  Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 69 ("GASB 69") 

The Health System will adopt GASB No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of 
Government Operations, in fiscal year 2015.  This statement provides guidance for financial 
accounting and reporting of government combinations and disposals of government operations.  
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 70 ("GASB 70") 

The Health System will adopt GASB No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, in fiscal year 2014.  This statement relates to accounting and
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financial reporting by state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial 
guarantees.  Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard. 
 
 
Note 18.  Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Current Economic Conditions  
 
The current economic environment continues to present hospitals with unprecedented 
circumstances and challenges, which in some cases have resulted in large declines in the fair 
values of investments and other assets, large declines in contributions, constraints on liquidity 
and difficulty obtaining financing.  The accompanying financial statements have been prepared 
using values and information currently available to the Health System. 
 
Current economic conditions, including the unemployment rate, have made it difficult for certain 
of the Health System's patients to pay for services rendered.  As employers make adjustments to 
health insurance plans or more patients become unemployed, services provided to self-pay and 
other payers may significantly impact net patient service revenue, which could have an adverse 
impact on the Health System's future operating results.  Further, the effect of economic 
conditions on the state could have an adverse effect on cash flows related to the Medicaid 
program.  
 
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Reconciliation Act 
 
On March 23, 2010, the most sweeping health care legislation since the advent of Medicare was 
signed into law. The law promises to expand insurance coverage to an additional 32 million 
Americans, reduce the growth of Medicare expenditures, dramatically reform insurance markets, 
and continue the trend toward value-based payment. The Reconciliation Act adds some new 
provisions that were not included originally. Several legal challenges have been made against the 
legislation since it was enacted, and uncertainty exists as to the ultimate impact of the legislation 
on the healthcare delivery system. On June 28, 2012, The United States Supreme Court upheld 
the constitutionality of components of the Affordable Care Act, allowing the historic overhaul of 
the healthcare system to continue. Potential impacts of health care reform include uncertainty 
and volatility in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement, fundamental changes in payment 
systems, increased regulation and significant required investments in healthcare information 
technology. 
 
CMS Recovery Audit Contractor Program 
 
The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") have implemented a Recovery Audit 
Contractors ("RAC") program.  The purpose of the program is to reduce improper Medicare 
payments through the detection and recovery of overpayments.  CMS has engaged 
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subcontractors to perform these audits and they are being compensated on a contingency basis 
based on the amount of overpayments that are recovered.  While management believes that all 
Medicare billings are proper and adequate support is maintained, certain aspects of Medicare 
billing, coding and support are subject to interpretation and may be viewed differently by the 
RAC auditors.   
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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     Amount of 
Name  Position Company  Bond 

Lawrence H. Cosper  Trustee Western Surety Company $ 10,000 
Allen L. Cronier  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
Ira S. Polk  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
Michael J. Heidelberg  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
Morris G. Strickland  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
Michael D. Tolleson  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
Eric D. Washington  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
Tommy L. Leonard  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
Stephen Nunemacher  Trustee Western Surety Company  10,000 
G. Chris Anderson  Chief Executive Officer Western Surety Company  10,000 
Michael E. Crews  Chief Financial Officer Western Surety Company  10,000 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
The Board of Trustees 
Singing River Health System 
Jackson County, Mississippi 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
business-type activities of Singing River Health System (the "Health System"), as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Health System’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
July 29, 2014. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Health System’s 
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Health 
System’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Health System’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis.   We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and responses as item 2013-1 to be a material weakness.  A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.   
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
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weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified.  However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and responses, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material 
weakness. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 

 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Health System’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

Ridgeland, Mississippi 
July 29, 2014 
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Material Weakness: 
 
Reference 
Number  Finding 
 
Finding 2013-1  

 
Criteria or Specific Requirement - Proper internal controls surrounding 
accounts receivable require accurate monthly calculations of the allowance 
for bad debt and contractual allowances. 
 
Condition - The Health System overestimated its ability to collect on 
patient accounts including active accounts and accounts that were written 
off but for which collections were being pursued through the Health 
System's internal collection department.    
 
Context – Adjustments were required to adjust the net realizable value of 
patient accounts receivable.  These adjustments resulted in a restatement 
adjustment of approximately $61,608,000 to the net position as of 
September 30, 2012 and a current year adjustment of approximately 
$27,130,000 to decrease net position. 
 
Effect - Prior year financials, as well as monthly and annual financial 
statements did not accurately reflect the financial position of the Health 
System. 
 
Cause – Failure to apply accurate collection percentages, both in the 
accounts receivable system and those handled by the internal collection 
agency. 
 
Recommendation - Management should adopt a formal and consistent 
methodology for the calculation of allowances for bad debt on self-pay 
patients on a monthly basis and perform periodic hindsight analysis to 
confirm the accuracy of the estimates. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - 
Management has already adopted a more conservative methodology for 
calculating bad debt allowances. 

 




